
 
 

CITY OF LAKE GENEVA 
626 GENEVA STREET 
LAKE GENEVA, WI 

 
PLAN COMMISSION MEETING 

MONDAY, DECEMBER 18, 2017 - 6:00 PM 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 

 
Agenda 

 
1. Meeting called to order by Mayor Kupsik. 

 
 2. Roll Call. 
 
 3. Approve Minutes of the November 20th Plan Commission meeting as distributed. 

  
4.   Comments from the public as allowed by Wis. Stats. §19.84(2), limited to items on this agenda, except for public 

hearing items.  Comments will be limited to five (5) minutes. 
 
5. Acknowledgment of Correspondence.  
 
6.  Downtown Design Review:  Application by Judy Law, N2425 Laura Street, Delavan, to add a new sign above 

the door at 706 W Main Street, “All About the Gown”, Tax Key No. ZOP 00307. 
 
7.  Downtown Design Review:  Application by Thomas George, 3389 S Shore Drive, Delavan, for exterior 

painting at 741 W Main Street, “E Street Denim”, Tax Key No. ZOP 00272. 
 
8. Review and Recommendation of an Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) CSM for Lots on Longwood  
       Drive in the Town of Geneva filed by Martin Arenson, 23442 N. Wildwood Lane, Deerfield, IL 60015, 
       filed by Lowell Management Services, PO Box 926, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, adjusting lot lines for 
      lots 1, 2, & 3, Tax Key Nos. JLW 00001, JLW 00002, JLW 00003, JLW 00004, JLW 00008, JLA471100001. 
 
9. Public Hearing and Recommendation to amendment the existing Conditional Use Permit (CUP) filed by Lake 

Geneva 50120, LLC., 3000 Dundee Rd. Suite 408, Northbrook, IL, 60062 for 281 N Edwards Blvd. to allow 
the proposed exterior façade changes at Tax Key No. ZA297300001. 

 
10. A. Review and Recommendation of a Petition for Annexation of 1.95 acres for Tax Key JG2500014A filed by Mark  
  Larkin, 500 Stone Ridge Drive, Lake Geneva, WI  53147. 
 

B. Review and Recommendation of a Request for Zoning Change filed by Mark Larkin, 500 Stone Ridge Drive, 
Lake Geneva, WI,  to change A-3 County zoning to TR6 zoning for the northern part and PB zoning for the 
southern part.  Tax Key JG2500014A 

 
11. A. Public Hearing and Recommendation to amend the existing General Development Plan (GDP), application filed  
  by Core Commercial Inc., for the property located at 753 Geneva Parkway, to allow for the construction of two  
  commercial buildings approximately 22,000 square feet and 15,000 square feet Tax Key Nos. ZGBC 0001A &  
  ZLGBP 00002. 
 
 B. Public Hearing and Recommendation on a Precise Implementation Plan (PIP), application filed by Core  
  Commercial Inc., for the property located at 753 Geneva Parkway, to allow for the construction of two  
  commercial buildings approximately 22,000 square feet and 15,000 square feet Tax Key Nos. ZGBC 0001A &  
  ZLGBP 00002. 
 
 



 
12. A. Public Hearing and Recommendation to amend the Existing General Development Plan (GDP), application filed  
  by Fairwyn SB, Inc., 875 Townline Road, Lake Geneva, to allow for the relocation of the proposed Duplex  
  Housing for the Symphony Bay Development, near Cadence Circle & Soprano Drive. 
 
 B. Public Hearing and Recommendation on a Precise Implementation Plan (PIP), application filed by Fairwyn SB,  
  Inc., 875 Townline Road, Lake Geneva, to allow for the relocation of the proposed Duplex Housing for the  
  Symphony Bay Development, near Cadence Circle & Soprano Drive. 
 
13. A. Public Hearing and Recommendation to amend the existing General Development Plan (GDP), application filed  
  by Southwind Prairie IV, LLC, 751 Geneva Parkway, Lake Geneva, to allow for the alteration of Building  
  Exteriors and Design, Storage Structure, and Sign installations at 755 Southwind Drive,  

Tax Key No. ZPRW 00054A. 
 

B. Public Hearing and Recommendation on a Precise Implementation Plan (PIP), application filed by Southwind  
 Prairie IV, LLC, 751 Geneva Parkway, Lake Geneva, to allow for the alteration of Building Exteriors and Design, 

Storage Structure, and Sign installations at 755 Southwind Drive, Tax Key No. ZPRW 00054A. 
 
14.  Adjournment 
 

 
 

QUORUM OF CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS MAY BE PRESENT 
Requests from persons with disabilities, who need assistance in order to participate in this meeting, should be made to the City Clerk's office, in order for appropriate accommodations. 

 Posted 11/14/2017 



1 of 3 
November 20, 2017 Plan Commission Minutes 
 

PLAN COMMISSION MEETING 
MONDAY, NOVEMBER 20, 2017 – 6:00 PM 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 
 
Mayor Kupsik called the meeting to order at 6:01 p.m.  
 
Roll Call.  Present: Mayor Kupsik, Alderman Doug Skates, John Gibbs, Sarah Hill, Tyler Frederick. Absent (Excused) 
Ted Horne, Ann Esarco, City Planner Slavney. Also Present: City Attorney Draper, City Administrator Oborn, Building 
and Zoning Administrator Walling, Building & Zoning Administrative Assistant Follensbee.  
 
Approve Minutes of the October 16th Joint City Council & Plan Commission Meeting and the October 16th Plan  
Commission meeting as distributed.  
Skates/Hill motion to approve.  Motion carried 5 to 0. 
 
Comments from the public as allowed by Wis. Stats. §19.84(2), limited to items on this agenda, except for public 
hearing items. Comments will to be limited to 5 minutes.   
 
Acknowledgement of Correspondence.  None. 
 
 
Review and Recommendation of a CSM Lot Division filed by Paul Van Henkelum, Cardinal Engineering, on 
behalf  of Mark Larkin, 500 Stone Ridge Drive, Lake Geneva, WI  53147, to divide a 6 acre parcel into 4 lots on the 
north side of Dodge Street, Tax Key No. ZYUP00053. 
Ryan Cardinal, of Cardinal Engineering, on behalf of Mark Larkin, presented the request. 
Zoning Administrator Walling stated all lots meet the zoning classification and is a simple land division CSM. 
 
Skates/Hill motion to approve the CSM to comply with technical review comments by the city’s consulting engineer. 
Roll Call:  Kupsik, Skates, Gibbs, Hill, Frederick voting “yes.”  Motion carried 5 to 0. 
 
 
Review and Recommendation of a CSM Lot Combination filed by Paul Van Henkelum, Cardinal Engineering, on  
behalf of Chris Law, Geneva Lakes Christian Church, W2906 Willow Road, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, to combine 2 
parcels at the SE corner of Bloomfield Road & Harmony Drive, Tax Key Nos. ZSF00232 and ZSF00231. 
Ryan Cardinal, of Cardinal Engineering, on behalf of Geneva Lakes Christian Church, presented the request. 
Zoning Administrator Walling said part of the agreement was to combine the 2 parcels into one lot.  
 
Kupsik/Gibbs motion to approve the CSM to include all fact finding and staff recommendations. 
Roll Call:  Kupsik, Skates, Gibbs, Hill, Frederick voting “yes.”  Motion carried 5 to 0. 
 
 
Review and Recommendation of a CSM Lot Combination filed by Paul Van Henkelum, Cardinal Engineering, on  
behalf of Golden Years, to combine 2 parcels on the SW corner of Bloomfield Road & Harmony Drive,  
Tax Key Nos. ZSF00074 & ZSF00085. 
Ryan Cardinal, of Cardinal Engineering, on behalf of Golden Years, presented the request. Zoning Administrator Walling 
stated this agreement also required the combination of 2 parcels into one lot. 
 
Kupsik/Skates motion to approve the CSM. 
Roll Call:  Kupsik, Skates, Gibbs, Hill, Frederick voting “yes.”  Motion carried 5 to 0. 
 
 
 
 



2 of 3 
November 20, 2017 Plan Commission Minutes 
 

Review and Recommendation of an Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) CSM Lot Division in the Town of Geneva, 
filed by Douglas Olson, Olson Land Surveying, LLC, on behalf of Millard Properties, LLC, W6362 Dunham 
School Road, Elkhorn, WI, to divide a parcel at W2970 Springfield Road, Tax Key No. JG 1400001. 
Bob Cook, Millard Properties, W6362 Dunham School Road, Elkhorn, presented his request. 
Mr. Walling verified this request meets the Walworth County zoning requirements for a 5 acre parcel. 
 
Skates/Hill motion to approve the CSM with all staff recommendations and fact finding. 
Roll Call:  Kupsik, Skates, Gibbs, Hill, Frederick voting “yes.”  Motion carried 5 to 0. 
 
 
Public Hearing and Recommendation for an amendment to an existing Conditional Use Permit (CUP) filed 
by Alan & Kathi Bosworth, 23 Windsor Drive, Elmhurst, IL, 60126 to add a landscape retaining wall at  
1224 Main Street, Tax Key No. ZYUP 00094A. 
John Forehand, architect, 914 Monroe, River Forrest, IL, and Al Bosworth, owner, presented their request. Mr. Walling 
clarified the fence would a maximum of 6’ from the mean average grade and asked Mr. Forehand to provide a rendering 
of the landscaping will look like from an at grade view. City Administrator Oborn said the Public Works director has a 
concern about snow removal for the driveway next to this proposed retaining wall and fence.  
 
Hill/Kupsik motion to close the public hearing.  Motion carried 5 to 0. 
 
Gibbs/Frederick motion to approve the amendment to an existing Conditional Use Permit to include all staff 
recommendations and affirmative findings of fact.  
Roll Call:  Kupsik, Skates, Gibbs, Hill, Frederick voting “yes. Motion carried 5 to 0. 
 
 
A. Public Hearing and Recommendation of the General Development Plan (GDP) filed by Steve Bieda, Mau & 
     Associates, LLP, 400 Security Blvd, Green Bay, WI 54313, on behalf of Himansu Dhyani/Northern  
     Management, to construct (4) four (8) eight unit multi-family buildings at l150 Wells Street,  
     Tax Key No. ZYUP00142B.  
     John Leroy, Mau and Associates, 400 Security Blvd, Green Bay, WI, presented their request with some modifications 
     to the layout. Mr. Walling stated after meeting with staff and working through the issues of its layout, this project  
     requires a couple exceptions which were stated but it does fall within the allowances. Mr. Walling said the engineering 
     will continue on this project provided the GDP gets approved.  
 
Speaker 1: Gerald Fischer, 250 Penny Lane, Lake Geneva, asked about the landscaping for the project. 
 
Kupsik/Skates motion to close the public hearing.  Motion carried 5 to 0. 
 
Kupsik/Skates motion to approve the GDP to include all staff recommendations and fact finding with agreement to items 
1 & 3. 1. The proposed GDP furthers the purposes of the Zoning Ordinance as outlined in Section 98-005 and the 
applicable rules and regulations of the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) and the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA). 3. The proposed GDP amendment to the Official Zoning Map maintains

 

 the desired 
consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

Roll Call:  Kupsik, Skates, Gibbs, Hill, Frederick, Horne voting “yes. Motion carried 5 to 0. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3 of 3 
November 20, 2017 Plan Commission Minutes 
 

B.  Public Hearing and Recommendation of the Precise Implementation Plan (PIP), filed by Steve Bieda, Mau &  
      Associates, LLP, 400 Security Blvd, Green Bay, WI 54313, on behalf of Himansu Dhyani/Northern  
      Management, to construct (4) four (8) eight unit multi-family buildings at l150 Wells Street,  
      Tax Key No. ZYUP00142B.  
      John Leroy, Mau and Associates present the PIP request. Discussion indicated our city engineers need to verify the  
      site works. Alderman Skates stated the application was lacking a landscaping plan, a lighting plan and building  
      samples. 
 
Skates/Gibbs motion to continue the Public Hearing & Recommendation for the PIP for 1150 Wells Street at the next Plan 
Commission meeting.  Motion carried 5 to 0. 
 
 
Public Hearing and Recommendation for a request to rezone the property currently zoned Planned Business Park 
to zoning classification of Planned Development, filed by Core Commercial Inc., for the property located at  
753 Geneva Parkway to construct 2 Commercial structures, Tax Key Nos. ZGBC 0001A & ZLGBP 00002. 
Kim Pischke, Core Commercial & Sandy Gulden CBRE Commercial Realtor, presented their request. Mr. Walling & City 
Attorney Draper clarified this request is for rezoning only.  
 
Speaker 1: Andy Dammeir,

    Development Corporation, stated LGEDC board has concerns regarding their revised plans such as the traffic 
 908 Wells Street, Lake Geneva, executive director of the Lake Geneva Economic  

    and change in the size of the plan which could impact the business park. 
 
Speaker 2: Charlene Klein, 817 Wisconsin Street, Lake Geneva, asked for clarification of this request and questioned the  
                  need for additional big box stores in Lake Geneva. 
 
Kupsik/Hill motion to close the public hearing.  Motion carried 5 to 0. 
 
Hill/Skates motion to approve and include all staff recommendations and fact finding in the affirmative.  
Roll Call:  Kupsik, Skates, Gibbs, Hill, Frederick, Horne voting “yes. Motion carried 5 to 0. 
 
 
Adjournment.  Skates/Hill motion to adjourn at 6:49 pm.  Motion carried 5 to 0.   
 
 
        
/s/ Brenda Follensbee, Building & Zoning Administrative Assistant 
 

THESE ARE NOT OFFICIAL MINUTES UNTIL APPROVED BY THE PLAN COMMISSION 



 1 

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 
Meeting Date:  December 18, 2017 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

The applicant is submitting an application for Downtown Design Review for a sign for a building 
located at 706 Main Street. The City reviews all signs in the CB zoning district to confirm that they 
conform to the Downtown Design standards, particularly quantity, size, and color requirements.  

Description: 

 
The applicant proposes a 9.5-square-footwall sign, would be constructed of aluminum with an inkjet 
laminate. Proposed sign colors include,white background with imperial gray the sign size is within the 
maximum permitted square feet area permitted. 
 

The colors submitted have been reviewed and comply with the Historic Colors of the Behr Williams 
color palette. The proposed wall sign meets the requirements of the Downtown Design Overlay Zoning 
district. As proposed, the projecting sign exceeds the maximum permitted area for projecting signs. 

Staff Recommendations:  

 
Staff recommends approval of the proposed sign in the location as submitted. 

Applicant
Judy Lew 

: 

N2425 Laura Street 
Delavan, WI 53121 
 

Request
706 W Main St, Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

: 

Downtown Design Review of Signage  

Agenda Item #6 











 1 

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 
Meeting Date:  December 18, 2017 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

The applicant is submitting an application for Downtown Design Review for the change of the exterior 
colors of the building located at 741 W. Main Street. The City reviews all exterior color changes in the 
CB zoning district to confirm that they conform to the Downtown Design standards, particularly color 
requirements.  

Description: 

 
The applicant proposesthe change in color to the trim, stucco, and iron beam with colors that are 
permitted within the Historic Colors allowed. The applicants have provided photos of the existing 
building as of now minus the awning as identified in the request by the applicant. 
 

The colors submitted have been reviewed and comply with the Historic Colors palette. The proposed 
colors to be used as identified meets the requirements of the Downtown Design Overlay Zoning district.  

Staff Recommendations:  

 
Staff recommends approval of the proposed color additions to the building location as submitted, 
however would request clarification from the applicant “for the record” if the awning will be reinstalled 
once the painting has been completed. 

Applicant
Thomas George 

: 

3389 South Shore Drive 
Delavan, WI 53121 
 

Request
741 W. Main St, Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

: 

Downtown Design Review Painting Exterior 

Agenda Item #7 









 1 

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 
Meeting Date:  December 18, 2017 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

This request is to approve a Certified Survey Map (CSM) to per density requirements of 
Walworth County Zoning and land division located in the Town of Geneva. 

Description: 

The parcels included in this CSM request are: 
• Parcel JLW 00008 
• Parcel JLW 00001 
• Parcel JLW 00002 
• Parcel JLW 00003 
• Parcel JLW 00004 
• Parcel JLA471100001 

 

The result of this CSM will be parcels that will be in accordance with Walworth County Land 
Use and Zoning and standards. Combining with lot line adjustments lots Parcel JLW 
00001&Parcel JLW 00002; Parcel JLW 00003&Parcel JLW 00004; Parcel JLW 00004&Parcel 
JLA471100001. 
 
The reconfiguration of these 3 newly created parcels will remove the limited building areas from 
lots 1, 2, 3, and 4 in addition the septic easement area for lot 1 from lot 2 and the no access strip 
along the street side of lot 1 as identified on the document provided by the applicant prepared by 
Peter S. Gordon. 

 

The proposed CSM drawing is provided on Sheet 2 of 3–project # 7192.17depicts the proposed 
parcel after the lot reconfiguration. 

Project Details from CSM Submittal dated 8-04-17: 

 
 

Agenda Item:#8 

Applicant: 
Lowell Custom Homes 
401 Geneva National Ave. 
Lake Geneva WI 53147 

Request: ETZ Town of Geneva 
Owner: Martin Arenson 
Exterritorial Zoning request (ETZ) for a lot line 
adjustment for the parcels located within the 
Town of Geneva 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 



 2 

Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Exterritorial Zoning request (ETZ) 
and review of the proposed Certified Survey Map (CSM): 

Action by the Plan Commission: 

As part of the consideration of the requested CSM, the Plan Commission is required to: 

• Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed CSM. 
 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the Exterritorial 
Zoning request (ETZ) and review of the proposed Certified Survey Map (CSM): as 
submitted, subject to approval for all parcels, and Walworth County Land Use Zoning. 

Staff Recommendation on the proposed Certified Survey Map (CSM): 



















1 
 

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date:  June 19, 2017 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

The applicant is submitting a request to amend the existing Conditional Use Permit (CUP) that was 
previously issued for the property located at 281 Edwards Blvd. for the exterior façade. The current 
design of the buildings is identified in the submittal as documents “Original Submittal”. The requested 
changes are reflected on the following pages whereas the request is a façade change from a flat parapet 
to an arched parapet and entry door configuration changes to accommodate possible rental clients. The 
City has previously approved the building, building locations, and site plan to include parking.  

Description: 

To clarify this request is only a non-structural building exterior façade change. 

 

Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed amendment to the existing Conditional Use 
Permit (CUP): 

Action by the Plan Commission: 

As part of the consideration of the requested CUP, the Plan Commission is required to: 

• Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed CUP; 
• Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for CUPs; and, 
• Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 

No impacts to neighboring properties are anticipated. 
Staff Review Comments: 

 

A proposed CUP must be reviewed by the standards, below: 

Required Plan Commission Findings on the CUP for Recommendation to the Common Council: 

A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 
fact finding would be all of the following: 

1.  In general, the proposed amended conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 
objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any 

Applicant
Lake Geneva 50120 LLC. 

: 

c/o GMX Real Estate Group LLC 
3000 Dundee Road suite 408  
Northbrook IL 60062 

Request
281 Edwards Blvd, Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

: Amend Existing CUP 

Conditional Use Permit Amendment Exterior 
Building Façade Change 

Agenda Item #9 



2 
 

other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by 
the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed amended conditional use is in harmony

3.  The proposed amended conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required 
site plan 

 with the purposes, 
goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 
and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 
notice by the City. 

does not result

4.  The proposedamended conditional use 

 in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character 
of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public 
property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, 
either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the 
implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan or any other 
plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the 
City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

maintains

5.  The proposedamended conditional use 

 the desired consistency of land uses, land use 
intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

is located in an area

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposedamended conditional use 

 that will be adequately served by, and 
will not impose an undue burden on any improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by 
public agencies serving the subject property. 

outweigh

B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact 
finding would be 

 all potential 
adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the Applicant’s 
proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts. 

one or more

1.  In general, the proposed amended conditional use 

 of the following: 

is not in harmony

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed amended conditional use 

 with the purposes, goals, 
objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any 
other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by 
the City. 

is not in harmony

3.  The proposedamended conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required 
site plan 

 with the purposes, 
goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 
and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 
notice by the City. 

does result

4.  The proposedamended conditional use 

 in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of 
the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public 
property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, 
either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the 
implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan or any other 
plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the 
City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

does not maintain the desired consistency of land uses, 
land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 



3 
 

5.  The proposed amended conditional use is not located in an area

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed amended conditional use 

 that will be adequately served by, 
and will impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or services 
provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

do not outweigh

 

 all 
potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 
Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 
impacts. 

 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommendapproval of the proposed amended 
conditional use as submitted, with the findings under A.1-6., above. 

Staff Recommendation on the Proposed Conditional Use Permit: 

2. Staff recommends the Plan Commission adopt the affirmative set of findings provided above. 













 1 

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 
Meeting Date:  December 18, 2017 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

The applicant has submitted a petitioner for annexation by unanimous consent to the City of Lake 
Geneva. The subject property is currently part of the Town of Geneva. 

Description: 

 
The subject property contains 1.95 acres, and is adjacent to the City on the north, east, and west 
boundaries of the property. The property is part of a remnant island of unannexed property, fully 
surrounded by the City. The proposed annexation would shrink the size of the town island. 
 
The subject property is depicted for future City expansion in the City’s Comprehensive Plan on Map 5, 
the Future Land Use Map. As such, the proposed annexation of the subject property is consistent

 

 with 
the City of Lake Geneva Comprehensive Plan. 

The Future Land Use Map designates the future development of the subject property in the Planned 
Business land use category for the south half, and in the Two-Family/Townhouse land use category for 
the north half.  The zoning of the subject property will require a separate City review process. 
 

The Plan Commission should provide a recommendation to the Common Council about the proposed 
annexation. The Plan Commission should provide an explanation for its recommendation. 

Action by the Plan Commission: 

 

Staff notes that the proposed annexation is consistent with the Future Land Use Map of the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan, which shows a combination of the Planned Business and Two-Family/Townhouse 
future land use categories on the subject property. If the Plan Commission recommends annexation, this 
factor should be provided as an explanation for the favorable recommendation. Annexation zoning will 
be Rural Holding (RH) until such time as the applicant requests a future zoning map change to best 
identify with a plat or CSM the future parcels and their allowed land use. 

Staff Review Comments: 

 
If the Plan Commission does not recommend annexation, I believe the best explanation is that the timing 
of the requested annexation is not ideal, in that the adjacent territory remains in the Town. 
 
       Michael A. Slavney, FAICP 
       City Planning Consultant 

Agenda Item #10 

Applicant: 
Mark Larkin 
500 South Stone Ridge Drive 
Lake Geneva, WI  53147 

Request: 
 
ANNEXATION of Tax Key: 
No. JG 2500014A 































 1 

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 
Meeting Date: December 18, 2017 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Applicant:      
Core Commercial Inc.     General Development Plan (GDP) 

Request: 

P.O. Box 1154      Construct Two Commercial Buildings at 
Appleton WI 54912     753 Geneva Parkway 
        
 

The applicant is submitting a request for the new construction of two commercial buildings recently 
rezoned with a comprehensive plan change from Planned Business Park (PBP) to Planned Business 
(PB). With the approval of this request it would consent to the proposed construction of two commercial 
buildings for the Commercial Indoor Sales land uses to occur at this location in consideration of the 
requestedGeneral Development Plan (GDP). 

Description: 

The requested GDP zoningapproval will allow for the construction of a 22,000 square foot indoor retail 
building & a proposed second multi-tenant building of 15,000 square foot adjacent to the current Keefe 
property located at 751 Geneva Parkway. 

Staff has met with the applicants on site considerations, building exterior materials, and site access. The 
applicant have requested to allow for reductions in parking stall sizes, foundation and parking lot 
landscaping with agreement from the city planner as being acceptable reductions. 

The city engineer has been in contact with the designer for storm water designs and requests the motion 
include the statement as contingent on the final staff approval of the storm water designs. 

A full plan description of the project (dated 10-27-17) is contained within the Plan Commission 
Packet.The property layout is included that depicts the lot dimensions. The applicant has also provided 
landscape plan, photometric plan, proposed building elevations to the primary building for Ross Dress 
for Less. 

Wisconsin law requires all Zoning Map Amendments (including General Development Plans) be 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, and particularly with the Future Land Use Map. This map 
change recommends the Planned Business land use category for the subject property. The proposed 
GDP zoning is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 

Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan: 

 

All Developments must explicitly identify any flexibilities being requested from base zoning standards 
in the most comparable regular zoning district. In this instance, the Planned Businesszoning district 
provides that comparison zoning district. The project is requesting 3 such flexibilities:  

Relation to Base Zoning Standards: 

1. The building foundation landscaping counts are permitted to be located on site however not 
directly at the foundation location. 

Agenda Item: #11 A 



 2 

2. The parking stall dimension reduction from 8’6” X 20’ to 9’x18’ feet with a 24’ isle width from 
26’ isle widths. 

3. Parking lot island reduction to be permitted to accommodate the revised stall dimensions. 

 
All other zoning requirements of the current GDP remain. 
 

Recommendation to the Common Council on the Proposed Zoning Map Amendment / GDP: 
Action by the Plan Commission:  

As part of the consideration of a requested Planned Business / General Development Plan (GDP) step, 
the Plan Commission is required to: 

• Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed Zoning Map 
amendment to GDP; 

• Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for Zoning Map amendments; and, 
• Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 

The proposed GDP applicants have met with staff and have provided the information and plan to support 
the requested GDP.  

Staff Review Comments: 

Planning staff supports the requested flexibilities. Staff further notes that this flexibility is only being 
considered for the primary building. Approval of this proposed GDP does not set legal precedent. 

A proposed GDP must be reviewed by the standards for all Zoning Map Amendments, below: 
Required Plan Commission Findings on the GDP for Recommendation to Common Council: 

A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 
fact finding would be in agreement with Items 1 and 3, and one or more factors of Item 2,

1. The proposed GDP 

 of the 
following. 

furthers

2. One or more of the following factors 

 the purposes of the Zoning Ordinance as outlined in Section 98-
005 and the applicable rules and regulations of the Wisconsin Department of Natural 
Resources (DNR) and the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). 

have arisen

a. The designations of the Official Zoning Map should be brought into conformity 
with the Comprehensive Plan; 

 that are not properly addressed on the 
current Official Zoning Map: 

b. A mistake was made in mapping on the Official Zoning Map; 
c. Factors have changed, making the subject property more appropriate for the 

proposed GDP zoning; 
d. Growth patterns or rates have changed, thereby creating the need for an amendment 

to the Official Zoning Map. And; 

3. The proposed GDP amendment to the Official Zoning Map maintains

Or: 

 the desired consistency 
of land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the 
subject property. 

 



 3 

B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact 
finding would be in disagreement with at least one of Items 1, 2, or 3

1. The proposed GDP 

 of the following: 

does not further

2. One or more of the following factors 

the purposes of the Zoning Ordinance as outlined in 
Section 98-005 and the applicable rules and regulations of the Wisconsin Department of 
Natural Resources (DNR) and the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). 

have not arisen

a. The designations of the Official Zoning Map should be brought into conformity 
with the Comprehensive Plan; 

 that are not properly addressed on the 
current Official Zoning Map: 

b. A mistake was made in mapping on the Official Zoning Map; 
c. Factors have changed, making the subject property more appropriate for the 

proposed GDP zoning; 
d. Growth patterns or rates have changed, thereby creating the need for an amendment 

to the Official Zoning Map. 

3. The proposed GDP amendment to the Official Zoning Map does not maintain

 

 the desired 
consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs 
of the subject property. 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommendapproval of the GDP as submitted, 
including the granting of the requested zoning ordinance flexibilities. 

Staff Recommendation on the General Development Plan: 

2. Staff recommends the affirmative set of findings provided above, noting thatthe proposal meets 
Factor3.  Specifically, the proposalmaintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use 
intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

3. Staff recommends that Plan Commission’s recommendation is that storm water approval be 
contingent on review and satisfaction of the city engineer.  



 1 

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 
Meeting Date: December 18, 2017 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Applicant:      
Core Commercial Inc.     Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) 

Request: 

P.O. Box 1154      Construct Two Commercial Buildings at 
Appleton WI 54912     753 Geneva Parkway 
        
 

The applicant is submitting a request for the new construction of two commercial buildings recently 
rezoned with a comprehensive plan change from Planned Business Park (PBP) to Planned Business 
(PB). With the approval of this request it would consentto the proposed construction of two commercial 
buildings forthe Commercial Indoor Sales land uses to occur at this location in consideration of the 
requested Precise Implementation Plan (PIP). 

Description: 

The requested PIP zoningapproval will allow for the construction of a 22,000 square foot indoor retail 
building & a proposed second multi-tenant building of 15,000 square foot adjacent to the current Keefe 
property located at 751 Geneva Parkway. 

Staff has met with the applicants on site considerations, building exterior materials, and site access. The 
applicant have requested to allow for reductions in parking stall sizes, foundation and parking lot 
landscaping with agreement from the city planner as being acceptable reductions. 

The city engineer has been in contact with the designer for storm water designs and requests the motion 
include the statement as contingent on the final staff approval of the storm water designs. 

A full plan description of the project (dated 10-27-17) is contained within the Plan Commission 
Packet.The property layout is included that depicts the lot dimensions. The applicant has also provided 
landscape plan, photometric plan, proposed building elevations to the primary building for Ross Dress 
for Less. 

Wisconsin law requires all Zoning Map Amendments (including Precise Implementation Plans) be 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, and particularly with the Future Land Use Map. This map 
change recommends the Planned Business land use category for the subject property. The proposed PIP 
zoning is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 

Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan: 

 

All Developments must explicitly identify any flexibilities being requested from base zoning standards 
in the most comparable regular zoning district. In this instance, the Planned Businesszoning district 
provides that comparison zoning district. The project is requesting 3 such flexibilities:  

Relation to Base Zoning Standards: 

1. The building foundation landscaping counts are permitted to be located on site however not 
directly at the foundation location. 

Agenda Item: #11 B 



 2 

2. The parking stall dimension reduction from 8’6” X 20’ to 9’x18’ feet with a 24’ isle width from 
26’ isle widths. 

3. Parking lot island reduction is permitted to accommodate the revised stall dimensions. 

 
All other zoning requirements of the current PIP remain. 
 

Recommendation to the Common Council on the Proposed Zoning Map Amendment / PIP: 
Action by the Plan Commission:  

As part of the consideration of a requested Planned Business / Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) step, 
the Plan Commission is required to: 

• Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed Zoning Map 
amendment to PIP; 

• Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for Zoning Map amendments; and, 
• Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 

The proposed PIP applicants have met with staff and have provided the information and plan to support 
the requested PIP.  

Staff Review Comments: 

Planning staff supports the requested flexibilities. Staff further notes that this flexibility is only being 
considered for the primary building. Approval of this proposed PIP does not set legal precedent. 

A proposed PIP must be reviewed by the standards for all Zoning Map Amendments, below: 
Required Plan Commission Findings on the PIP for Recommendation to Common Council: 

A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 
fact finding would be in agreement with Items 1 and 3, and one or more factors of Item 2,

1. The proposed PIP 

 of the 
following. 

furthers

2. One or more of the following factors 

 the purposes of the Zoning Ordinance as outlined in Section 98-
005 and the applicable rules and regulations of the Wisconsin Department of Natural 
Resources (DNR) and the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). 

have arisen

a. The designations of the Official Zoning Map should be brought into conformity 
with the Comprehensive Plan; 

 that are not properly addressed on the 
current Official Zoning Map: 

b. A mistake was made in mapping on the Official Zoning Map; 
c. Factors have changed, making the subject property more appropriate for the 

proposed PIP zoning; 
d. Growth patterns or rates have changed, thereby creating the need for an amendment 

to the Official Zoning Map. And; 

3. The proposed PIP amendment to the Official Zoning Map maintains

Or: 

 the desired consistency 
of land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the 
subject property. 

 



 3 

B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact 
finding would be in disagreement with at least one of Items 1, 2, or 3

1. The proposed PIP 

 of the following: 

does not further

2. One or more of the following factors 

the purposes of the Zoning Ordinance as outlined in 
Section 98-005 and the applicable rules and regulations of the Wisconsin Department of 
Natural Resources (DNR) and the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). 

have not arisen

a. The designations of the Official Zoning Map should be brought into conformity 
with the Comprehensive Plan; 

 that are not properly addressed on the 
current Official Zoning Map: 

b. A mistake was made in mapping on the Official Zoning Map; 
c. Factors have changed, making the subject property more appropriate for the 

proposed PIP zoning; 
d. Growth patterns or rates have changed, thereby creating the need for an amendment 

to the Official Zoning Map. 

3. The proposed PIP amendment to the Official Zoning Map does not maintain

 

 the desired 
consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs 
of the subject property. 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommendapproval of the PIP as submitted, 
including the granting of the requested zoning ordinance flexibilities. 

Staff Recommendation on the Precise Implementation Plan (PIP): 

2. Staff recommends the affirmative set of findings provided above, noting thatthe proposal meets 
Factor3.  Specifically, the proposalmaintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use 
intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

3. Staff recommends that Plan Commission’s recommendation is that storm water approval be 
contingent on review and satisfaction of the city engineer.  







































































































 1 

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 
Meeting Date: December 18, 2017 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Applicant:      
Fairwyn SB, Inc.     From the current General Development Plan 

Request: 

875 Townline Road     To a new General Development Plan 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147     
 
 

The applicant is submitting a request to amend the existing General Development Plan (GDP) zoning 
requestwith the revisions to re-subdivide 39 single family lots into 21 duplex lots. With this request the 
developer “is not” increasing the dwelling counts for the entire development. The proposed change will 
move the proposed duplex dwellings from a future phase of construction to the current phase of the 
development.  

Description: 

The applicants have identified in the proposal the project density as previously approved single family 
unit counts of 369 and duplex units of 58, with the amendment as submitted single family 369 and 58 
duplex. As submitted there is no increase in dwelling units, the change if approved will not require any 
changes to already platted roadways. 

The applicants have met with staff and the City Engineers to identify any items of issue in which no 
changes to the existing platted roadways will minimally change any issues with the alteration of building 
size on the proposed lots. 

A full description of the project (dated November 14, 2017) is contained within the Plan Commission 
Packet.The Subdivision layout is included that depicts the lot dimensions and plat boundaries.  

Wisconsin law requires all Zoning Map Amendments (including General Development Plans) be 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, and particularly with the Future Land Use Map. This map 
recommends the Single-Family land use category for the subject property. The proposed GDP zoning is 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 

Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan: 

 

All Planned Developments must explicitly identify any flexibilities being requested from base zoning 
standards in the most comparable regular zoning district. -None needed 

Relation to Base Zoning Standards: 

All other zoning requirements of the current GDP remain. 
 

Recommendation to the Common Council on the Proposed Zoning Map Amendment / GDP: 
Action by the Plan Commission:  

As part of the consideration of a requested General Development Plan (GDP) step, the Plan Commission 
is required to: 

Agenda Item: 12 A 



 2 

• Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed Zoning Map 
amendment to GDP; 

• Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for Zoning Map amendments; and, 
• Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 

The proposed amendments to the existing GDP are minimal if none at all by moving the duplex units 
from a future phase of the development to the initial phase without increasing the entire development 
unit count. 

Staff Review Comments: 

A proposed GDP must be reviewed by the standards for all Zoning Map Amendments, below: 
Required Plan Commission Findings on the GDP for Recommendation to Common Council: 

A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 
fact finding would be in agreement with Items 1 and 3, and one or more factors of Item 2,

1. The proposed GDP 

 of the 
following. 

furthers

2. One or more of the following factors 

 the purposes of the Zoning Ordinance as outlined in Section 98-
005 and the applicable rules and regulations of the Wisconsin Department of Natural 
Resources (DNR) and the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). 

have arisen

a. The designations of the Official Zoning Map should be brought into conformity 
with the Comprehensive Plan; 

 that are not properly addressed on the 
current Official Zoning Map: 

b. A mistake was made in mapping on the Official Zoning Map; 
c. Factors have changed, making the subject property more appropriate for the 

proposed GDP zoning; 
d. Growth patterns or rates have changed, thereby creating the need for an amendment 

to the Official Zoning Map. And; 

3. The proposed GDP amendment to the Official Zoning Map maintains

Or: 

 the desired consistency 
of land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the 
subject property. 

 
B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact 

finding would be in disagreement with at least one of Items 1, 2, or 3

1. The proposed GDP 

 of the following: 

does not further

2. One or more of the following factors 

the purposes of the Zoning Ordinance as outlined in 
Section 98-005 and the applicable rules and regulations of the Wisconsin Department of 
Natural Resources (DNR) and the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). 

have not arisen

a. The designations of the Official Zoning Map should be brought into conformity 
with the Comprehensive Plan; 

 that are not properly addressed on the 
current Official Zoning Map: 

b. A mistake was made in mapping on the Official Zoning Map; 
c. Factors have changed, making the subject property more appropriate for the 

proposed GDP zoning; 
d. Growth patterns or rates have changed, thereby creating the need for an amendment 

to the Official Zoning Map. 



 3 

3. The proposed GDP amendment to the Official Zoning Map does not maintain

 

 the desired 
consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs 
of the subject property. 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommendapproval of the GDP as submitted. 
Staff Recommendation on the General Development Plan: 

2. Staff recommends the affirmative set of findings provided above, noting thatthe proposal meets 
Factor3. 



 1 

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 
Meeting Date: December 18, 2017 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Applicant:      
Fairwyn SB, Inc.     Amending Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) 

Request: 

875 Townline Road      
Lake Geneva, WI 53147     
 
 

The applicant is submitting a request to amend the existing Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) zoning 
requestwith the revisions to re-subdivide 39 single family lots into 21 duplex lots. With this request the 
developer “is not” increasing the dwelling counts for the entire development. The proposed change will 
move the proposed duplex dwellings from a future phase of construction to the current phase of the 
development.  

Description: 

The applicants have identified in the proposal the project density as previously approved single family 
unit counts of 369 and duplex units of 58, with the amendment as submitted single family 369 and 58 
duplex. As submitted there is no increase in dwelling units, the change if approved will not require any 
changes to already platted roadways. 

The applicants have met with staff and the City Engineers to identify any items of issue in which no 
changes to the existing platted roadways will minimally change any issues with the alteration of building 
size on the proposed lots. 

A full description of the project (dated November 14, 2017) is contained within the Plan Commission 
Packet.The Subdivision layout is included that depicts the lot dimensions and plat boundaries.  

Wisconsin law requires all Zoning Map Amendments (including Precise Implementation Plan) be 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, and particularly with the Future Land Use Map. This map 
recommends the Single-Family land use category for the subject property. The proposed PIP zoning is 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 

Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan: 

 

All Planned Developments must explicitly identify any flexibilities being requested from base zoning 
standards in the most comparable regular zoning district. -None needed 

Relation to Base Zoning Standards: 

All other zoning requirements of the current PIP remain. 
 

Recommendation to the Common Council on the Proposed Zoning Map Amendment / PIP: 
Action by the Plan Commission:  

As part of the consideration of a requestedPrecise Implementation Plan (PIP) step, the Plan Commission 
is required to: 

Agenda Item: 12 B 



 2 

• Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed Zoning Map 
amendment to PIP; 

• Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for Zoning Map amendments; and, 
• Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 

The proposed amendments to the existing PIP are minimal if none at all by moving the duplex units 
from a future phase of the development to the initial phase without increasing the entire development 
unit count. 

Staff Review Comments: 

A proposed PIP must be reviewed by the standards for all Zoning Map Amendments, below: 
Required Plan Commission Findings on the PIP for Recommendation to Common Council: 

A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 
fact finding would be in agreement with Items 1 and 3, and one or more factors of Item 2,

1. The proposed PIP 

 of the 
following. 

furthers

2. One or more of the following factors 

 the purposes of the Zoning Ordinance as outlined in Section 98-
005 and the applicable rules and regulations of the Wisconsin Department of Natural 
Resources (DNR) and the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). 

have arisen

a. The designations of the Official Zoning Map should be brought into conformity 
with the Comprehensive Plan; 

 that are not properly addressed on the 
current Official Zoning Map: 

b. A mistake was made in mapping on the Official Zoning Map; 
c. Factors have changed, making the subject property more appropriate for the 

proposed PIP zoning; 
d. Growth patterns or rates have changed, thereby creating the need for an amendment 

to the Official Zoning Map. And; 

3. The proposed PIP amendment to the Official Zoning Map maintains

Or: 

 the desired consistency 
of land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the 
subject property. 

 
B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact 

finding would be in disagreement with at least one of Items 1, 2, or 3

1. The proposed PIP 

 of the following: 

does not further

2. One or more of the following factors 

the purposes of the Zoning Ordinance as outlined in 
Section 98-005 and the applicable rules and regulations of the Wisconsin Department of 
Natural Resources (DNR) and the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). 

have not arisen

a. The designations of the Official Zoning Map should be brought into conformity 
with the Comprehensive Plan; 

 that are not properly addressed on the 
current Official Zoning Map: 

b. A mistake was made in mapping on the Official Zoning Map; 
c. Factors have changed, making the subject property more appropriate for the 

proposed PIP zoning; 
d. Growth patterns or rates have changed, thereby creating the need for an amendment 

to the Official Zoning Map. 



 3 

3. The proposed PIP amendment to the Official Zoning Map does not maintain

 

 the desired 
consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs 
of the subject property. 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommendapproval of the Precise Implementation 
Plan as submitted. 

Staff Recommendation on the Precise Implementation Plan: 

2. Staff recommends the affirmative set of findings provided above, noting thatthe proposal meets 
Factor3. 































 1 

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 
Meeting Date: December 18, 2017 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Applicant:      
Southwind Prairie IV, LLC.    Amending General Development Plan (GDP) 

Request: 

751 Geneva Parkway      
Lake Geneva, WI 53147     
 
 

The applicant is submitting a request to amend the existing General Development Plan (GDP) zoning 
request with the revised: 

Description: 

• Building shape and design 
• Storage /  Maintenance Structure 
• New Sign  

The original General Development Plan (GDP) was started with different ownership of the property and 
since has changed owners again with the current applicant owning the adjacent multi-family 
development. The applicant is requesting the review for the amendment request to reflect the unit 
construction that is currently developed on the Southwind Drive properties. 

The applicants have met with staff to identify any possible issues and in finding none other than building 
design the review was fairly straight forward. 

A full description of the project (dated October 12, 2017) is contained within the Plan Commission 
Packet. The Subdivision layout is included that depicts the lot dimensions and plat boundaries.  

Wisconsin law requires all Zoning Map Amendments (including General Development Plan) be 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, and particularly with the Future Land Use Map. This map 
recommends the Single-Family land use category for the subject property. The proposed GDP zoning is 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 

Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan: 

 

All Planned Developments must explicitly identify any flexibilities being requested from base zoning 
standards in the most comparable regular zoning district. -None needed 

Relation to Base Zoning Standards: 

All other zoning requirements of the current GDP remain. 
 

Recommendation to the Common Council on the Proposed Zoning Map Amendment / GDP: 
Action by the Plan Commission:  

As part of the consideration of a requested General Development Plan (GDP) step, the Plan Commission 
is required to: 

Agenda Item: 13A 



 2 

• Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed Zoning Map 
amendment to GDP; 

• Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for Zoning Map amendments; and, 
• Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 

The proposed amendments to the existing GDP are minimal if none at all by changing the shape and 
exterior finishes of the buildings. 

Staff Review Comments: 

A proposed GDP must be reviewed by the standards for all Zoning Map Amendments, below: 
Required Plan Commission Findings on the GDP for Recommendation to Common Council: 

A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 
fact finding would be in agreement with Items 1 and 3, and one or more factors of Item 2,

1. The proposed GDP 

 of the 
following. 

furthers

2. One or more of the following factors 

 the purposes of the Zoning Ordinance as outlined in Section 98-
005 and the applicable rules and regulations of the Wisconsin Department of Natural 
Resources (DNR) and the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). 

have arisen

a. The designations of the Official Zoning Map should be brought into conformity 
with the Comprehensive Plan; 

 that are not properly addressed on the 
current Official Zoning Map: 

b. A mistake was made in mapping on the Official Zoning Map; 
c. Factors have changed, making the subject property more appropriate for the 

proposed GDP zoning; 
d. Growth patterns or rates have changed, thereby creating the need for an amendment 

to the Official Zoning Map. And; 

3. The proposed PIP amendment to the Official Zoning Map maintains

Or: 

 the desired consistency 
of land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the 
subject property. 

 
B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact 

finding would be in disagreement with at least one of Items 1, 2, or 3

1. The proposed GDP 

 of the following: 

does not further

2. One or more of the following factors 

 the purposes of the Zoning Ordinance as outlined in 
Section 98-005 and the applicable rules and regulations of the Wisconsin Department of 
Natural Resources (DNR) and the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). 

have not arisen

a. The designations of the Official Zoning Map should be brought into conformity 
with the Comprehensive Plan; 

 that are not properly addressed on the 
current Official Zoning Map: 

b. A mistake was made in mapping on the Official Zoning Map; 
c. Factors have changed, making the subject property more appropriate for the 

proposed GDP zoning; 
d. Growth patterns or rates have changed, thereby creating the need for an amendment 

to the Official Zoning Map. 



 3 

3. The proposed GDP amendment to the Official Zoning Map does not maintain

 

 the desired 
consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs 
of the subject property. 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the General Development 
Plan (GDP) as submitted. 

Staff Recommendation on the General Development Plan: 

2. Staff recommends the affirmative set of findings provided above, noting that the proposal meets 
Factor3. 



 1 

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 
Meeting Date: December 18, 2017 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Applicant:      
Southwind Prairie IV, LLC.    Amending Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) 

Request: 

751 Geneva Parkway      
Lake Geneva, WI 53147     
 
 

The applicant is submitting a request to amend the existing Precise Implementation Plan (PIP) zoning 
requestwith the revised: 

Description: 

• Building shape and design 
• Storage /  Maintenance Structure 
• New Sign  

The original Precise Implementation Plan was started with different ownership of the property and since 
has changed owners again with the current applicant owning the adjacent multi-family development. 
The applicant is requesting the review for the amendment request to reflect the unit construction that is 
currently developed on the Southwind Drive properties. 

The applicants have met with staff to identify any possible issues and in finding none other than building 
design the review was fairly straight forward. 

A full description of the project (dated October 12, 2017) is contained within the Plan Commission 
Packet.The Subdivision layout is included that depicts the lot dimensions and plat boundaries.  

Wisconsin law requires all Zoning Map Amendments (including Precise Implementation Plan) be 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, and particularly with the Future Land Use Map. This map 
recommends the Single-Family land use category for the subject property. The proposed PIP zoning is 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 

Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan: 

 

All Planned Developments must explicitly identify any flexibilities being requested from base zoning 
standards in the most comparable regular zoning district. -None needed 

Relation to Base Zoning Standards: 

All other zoning requirements of the current PIP remain. 
 

Recommendation to the Common Council on the Proposed Zoning Map Amendment / PIP: 
Action by the Plan Commission:  

As part of the consideration of a requestedPrecise Implementation Plan (PIP) step, the Plan Commission 
is required to: 

Agenda Item: 13B 



 2 

• Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed Zoning Map 
amendment to PIP; 

• Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for Zoning Map amendments; and, 
• Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 

The proposed amendments to the existing PIP are minimal if none at all by changing the shape and 
exterior finishes of the buildings. 

Staff Review Comments: 

A proposed PIP must be reviewed by the standards for all Zoning Map Amendments, below: 
Required Plan Commission Findings on the PIP for Recommendation to Common Council: 

A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 
fact finding would be in agreement with Items 1 and 3, and one or more factors of Item 2,

1. The proposed PIP 

 of the 
following. 

furthers

2. One or more of the following factors 

 the purposes of the Zoning Ordinance as outlined in Section 98-
005 and the applicable rules and regulations of the Wisconsin Department of Natural 
Resources (DNR) and the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). 

have arisen

a. The designations of the Official Zoning Map should be brought into conformity 
with the Comprehensive Plan; 

 that are not properly addressed on the 
current Official Zoning Map: 

b. A mistake was made in mapping on the Official Zoning Map; 
c. Factors have changed, making the subject property more appropriate for the 

proposed PIP zoning; 
d. Growth patterns or rates have changed, thereby creating the need for an amendment 

to the Official Zoning Map. And; 

3. The proposed PIP amendment to the Official Zoning Map maintains

Or: 

 the desired consistency 
of land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the 
subject property. 

 
B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact 

finding would be in disagreement with at least one of Items 1, 2, or 3

1. The proposed PIP 

 of the following: 

does not further

2. One or more of the following factors 

the purposes of the Zoning Ordinance as outlined in 
Section 98-005 and the applicable rules and regulations of the Wisconsin Department of 
Natural Resources (DNR) and the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). 

have not arisen

a. The designations of the Official Zoning Map should be brought into conformity 
with the Comprehensive Plan; 

 that are not properly addressed on the 
current Official Zoning Map: 

b. A mistake was made in mapping on the Official Zoning Map; 
c. Factors have changed, making the subject property more appropriate for the 

proposed PIP zoning; 
d. Growth patterns or rates have changed, thereby creating the need for an amendment 

to the Official Zoning Map. 



 3 

3. The proposed PIP amendment to the Official Zoning Map does not maintain

 

 the desired 
consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs 
of the subject property. 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommendapproval of the Precise Implementation 
Plan as submitted. 

Staff Recommendation on the Precise Implementation Plan: 

2. Staff recommends the affirmative set of findings provided above, noting thatthe proposal meets 
Factor3. 









































5'OIJ.f" t..-UJ-;V J Fv~' 1"'"1;'- t&,;Ov / C'p ~,.., ...,,,\J I f)' J.Z:.
·t~) ~c.,.;;r /1.A-AJ; /~ j;l/ dO/7

111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111(11111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111301 W 1111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111I111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111

th -J e~t P~/tzR;d • Oak Creek, WI 53154 • TelePhOnpe414-571~1811)? FaX;,414-571-1810 • hickorylandscape@wi.rr.com

'J'? I I (!III s ". /7 fi. '/ \,r.. '7 YWfr"P VYI\")I~J v/' ' /(jII)V,,(I"'r;' PA k , "Y , ,,'\. "fy,,-:
& r:-;:'~'-"I-J /ii~ '\(tJ. ()~ .shl'v6$ -----'(i)gg \

~~ ~
~ ~~.>

--.....fl (IV' rv I;:"j
j?rv 1"""""'" ;- t~ 1..1'



 


	1. 12 18 2017 Agenda
	3. 11 20 2017 Plan Commission Minutes
	6. 706 W Main St - Downtown Design
	7. 741 W Main St - Downtown Design
	8. Longwood Dr - CSM - ETZ
	9. 281 N Edwards Blvd - CUP
	10. Stone Ridge - Annexation & Rezone
	11. a.b. 753 Geneva Parkway - GDP - PIP
	12.a.b. Symphony Bay GDP - PIP
	13.a.b. 755 Southwind Dr - GDP - PIP

